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HISTORIC SITE FORM

(3/12)

UTAH OFFICE OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION
For Section 106 Review Only
(This form does not replace the consultation letter or determination of eligibility/finding of effect)

1 IDENTIFICATION
Name of Property/Current Owner: USDA Forest Service Township: 5S Range: 3E Section: 7

Address:N/A Lat/Long(degr dec.): 40° 23.638’N/ 111° 38.427'W
City, County: Utah County 106 Case #:N/A

Tax Number: N/A Agency Project #: UWC-17-1663

State Site # 42UT1982 Agency Site #: UWC-831

Legal Description (include acreage): SE % of NE Y of SE Y% of SE Y% and Acreage = 0.025

2 STATUS/USE

Property Category Evaluation Use (based on RLS data options)
X building(s) X eligible/contributing Original Use: Shelter
__Structure __ineligible/non-contributing

__site : __out-of-period Current Use: Shelter

__object

3 DOCUMENTATION

Photos: Dates Research Sources (check all sources consulted, whether useful or not)
X CD-Rom/prints: -__abstract of title

X historic: __tax card & photo

Drawings and Plans __building permit

X _site sketch map __Sanborn Maps

X other: Plans/Drawings X  other: historical information from newspapers and publications

4 ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION (based on RLS data options)

Date of Construction: 1957-1959 No. of Stories: 1
Building Type: Shelter Building Style: Forest Service Design
Foundation Material: Concrete Wall Material(s): Stone Masonry

Additions: X none __ minor _ major (describe below)  Alterations: __none X minor __ major (describe
below)
No. of contributing outbuildings and/or structures: 0 No. of non-contributing outbuildings and/or structures: 0

Briefly describe the principal building additions or alterations and their dates, and associated outbuildings and
Structures.

No additions made since the buildings construction. However, originally on the back of this building there were
toilets, a women’s on one side and men’s on the other, this portion of the building was completely removed
sometime in the 1980’s or 1990’s. The toilets were constructed with wood framing, wood siding, 5 panel doors, and
2 four-panel, horizontally hung windows similar to the windows on the building front. As a result of the toilets being
removed from the back of the building, the back wall of the shelter, which consisted of a masonry rock wall, wood
siding, and 2 four-panel, vertically hung windows. All the exterior wood siding has been removed, likely by vandals
for use in camp fires.



5 HISTORY/PROPOSED ACTION
Describe the impending action (e.g., road widening, rehabilitation, alteration, demolition). Additional historical
information is optional.

Impending Action

Seeking Utah State Historic Preservation Office Concurrence that the Emerald Lake Shelter is eligible to the
National Register of Historic Places

Historic Context — Mount Timpanogos Hike

The Mount Timpanogos hike was first organized in 1912 by Brigham Young University’s (BYU) Athletic Director
Eugene L. Roberts (Salt Lake Telegram 1927:6; Salt Lake Telegram 1936:11; Salt Lake Telegram 1937:16), and in
1913 there were 56 people who made the journey (Thompson 1997:62; Romaine 1984:159). As the hike continued,
formal trails were constructed and a pre-hike program was conducted at the base of Mt. Timpanogos at the hike’s
starting location in Aspen Grove. This program allowed the community to congregate in the forest prior to the hike
and was aimed at entertaining both hikers and supporters.

In 1921 the Forest Service built the Timpooneke hiking trail (near the Timpooneke Guard Station) to access the
summit from the north (Olson 2006:95). Also during the 1920’s the Forest Service, along with help from BYU
students, built a trail from Aspen Grove to reach the summit from the east (Richfield Reaper 1925:2). With trails
established, the Pleasant Grove Wasatch Club began campaigns to fund a monument at the summit; this was later
abandoned for the idea of a lookout (Olsen 2006:95). Forest Service Ranger Vivian N. West, also a member of the
Pleasant Grove Wasatch Club, facilitated construction of a lookout along with a viewfinder. Ranger West
contracted the lookouts fabrication to the Builders Steel and Iron Company of Salt Lake City (Olsen 2006:95). On
September 23, 1927 the Salt Lake Telegram reported that “the glass station, built 12,008 feet above sea level, has
been constructed” (Salt Lake Telegram 1927:2). Ranger West, four of his Forest Service employees and a team of
horses and burros transported the fabricated material, along with tools, cement, water, etc. up the Timpooneke
hiking trail to the summit where they erected the lookout (Olsen 2006:95).

By the early 1930’s the number of community gatherers at the Aspen Grove program grew to several thousands and
hikers to several hundreds. As such, it was considered to be the largest known organized hike receiving national
attention (Thompson 1997:62; Holmes 1990:165) when in 1925 the Fox News Service took a motion picture camera
on the hike (Richfield Reaper 1925:2). The program was known as the “great bonfire program” (Richfield Reaper
1925:2) and the hike was known as “Americas greatest mass hike” (Salt Lake Telegram 1937:16). In order to
facilitate the program early on, an informal stage and seating had been constructed, but by the 1930’s the program
was in dire need of an updated facility. On July 30, 1933 the Salt Lake Tribune reported 8,000 people at the pre-hike
program (Salt Lake Tribune 1933:16).

In 1933, Franklin D. Roosevelt’s New Deal Program (1933-1942) was established providing the man power to
construct recreation facilities on Forest Service lands by the Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC) and the Works
Progress Administration (WPA). In 1935, the CCC Woods Cross Camp (F-48) working under direction from the
U.S. Forest Service began construction on the most grandiose of Utah’s amphitheaters, Theater in the Pines, to serve
as a congregation facility for the annual Mount Timpanogos pre-hike program. The CCC did the stages stone work,
and the following year (1936) WPA Camp No. 553 completed concrete work and built the log seats (Salt Lake
Tribune 1935:16; Salt Lake Telegram 1936:11). On July 8, 1935 the Salt Lake Tribune reported “the open-air
amphitheater is one of the first of its kind to be built in this region” and “the new theater will provide excellent seats
for 2000 in the hillside” (Salt Lake Tribune 1935:16). The amphitheater was put into use in July 1936 and Eugene L.
Roberts, founder and father of the Mount Timpanogos hike stated “here dreams are coming true” (Salt Lake
Telegram 1936:11).

By 1958 the annual Mount Timpanogos hike recorded 2,200 individuals hiked from Aspen Grove to the summit
(Thompson 1997:62; Kelsey 1989), in addition to the annual hike, the Aspen Grove and Timpooneke trails were
being hiked by thousands of individuals each year. In an effort to provide protection for both hikers and the
environment, the Emerald Lake Shelter was built to provide an emergency shelter and restrooms (Thompson



1997:61). The shelter’s construction was heavily supported by the community and was paid for by several
sponsoring groups including Utah County, U.S. Forest Service, Provo City, Provo Chamber of Commerce and
Brigham Young University (The Daily Herald 1960:3; The daily Herald 1959:5). Construction began in 1957 where
“material, including sand, rock and cement hauled up by packhorse train” and “massive steel structures were toted
up-trail on a two-wheels-in-tandem vehicle” (The Daily Herald 1959:5). In July 1960 the facility was dedicated and
put to use offering “shelter to hikers caught in bad weather or those who might be injured, climbing the treacherous
Timpanogos glacier” (The Daily Herald 1960:3; The Daily Herald 1959:5). It was estimated in 1960 that annually
about “2000 people reach the summit while another 1000-1500 only reach the lake” (The Daily Herald 1960:3; The
Daily Herald 1959:5).

The Emerald Lake Shelter has proved to save lives over the years, an example comes from two young hikers in 1977
that hiked to Emerald Lake to camp overnight and woke the next morning to a storm. Hikers C. R. Humphries and
H. K. Weber explained to the Deseret News (1977:12) “the storm hit...there was two to four feet of snow...and the
wind was whipping so bad we could see very little...we decided we were in trouble”, they proceeded to move their
equipment into the shelter where they were snowed in for 4 days. The shelter and its fireplace helped to protect them
from the elements; they collected wood to keep a fire going, heated rocks to put in their sleeping bags to stay warm,
and melted snow for drinking water. The shelter continues to provide hikers protection from the elements and is
used consistently by the Timpanogos Emergency Response Team (TERT) in order to provide hikers with necessary
first aid and in some cases to stabilize seriously injured patients for evacuation.

In 1964 the Wilderness Act was passed, 20 years later the Utah Wilderness Act was passed and the Mount
Timpanogos Wilderness was established in 1984. When defining wilderness, the Wilderness Act of 1964 states
under Section 2(c)(4), “may contain ecological, geological, or other features of scientific, educational, scenic, or
historical value.” The Emerald Lake Shelter and Glass House hold historical value, as they were constructed as
landmarks for those making their annual Timpanogos Hike, the first provides a resting place and protection from the
elements before hikers make the final ascent to the summit and the second serves as an overlook of the wilderness-
urban interface of the Wasatch Front and Back. Many hikers in the Mount Timpanogos wilderness are there to
experience the Wilderness with a goal in mind to reach one or both of these buildings. Originally both buildings
served as milestones, drawing people into the Wilderness, but now these shelters have additional nostalgic meaning
for hikers, as many have hiked the trail all their lives with their family and friends, resting at these buildings and
often times taking photos of themselves with them.

The 1969 Timpanogos Hike put approximately 8,000 individuals on the mountain with approximately 3,500
reaching the summit (Thompson 1997:61). As a result, the Forest Service asked BYU to discontinue the group hike
from Aspen Grove in an effort to reduce the environmental impacts. Once the Mount Timpanogos Wilderness was
established in 1984 this continued the effort to preserve environmental quality, however inadvertently it made
maintenance and preservation of the two historic buildings in the wilderness a dubious topic. Even with
discontinuing the organized hike, several thousand individuals continued to hike Timpanogos each year and began
writing their names, dates, etc. to document their hike on the deteriorating buildings. These buildings not only
served as destination beacons but also as a visitor log of sorts. Efforts have been made to stop the graffiti through
removal at the Emerald Lake Shelter and repainting the galvanized steel of the glass house, however these efforts
have been unsuccessful in stopping this practice. The establishment of the Timpanogos Emergency Response Team
(TERT) in 1983 provides a presence at the Emerald Lake Shelter which helps to abate graffiti when they are using
the facility.

When the Mount Timpanogos Wilderness was established in 1984 the Glass House was already a historic building,
as it was 56 years in age, and eligible for nomination to the National Register of Historic Places (NHPA) under
Criterion A for its association with the annual Timpanogos Hike which was a significant local historical event. At
the time the Wilderness was established the Emerald Lake Shelter was only 24, but now is 57 years in age, and is
therefore being assessed here for its eligibility to the NRHP.

National Register of Historic Places Eligibility Determination — Emerald I ake Shelter

The Historic Context provided here details the significant theme the Mount Timpanogos Hike holds with respect to
social history as the Area of Significance used by the National Register of Historic Places. The Mount Timpanogos
Hike is a significant local event to the community of northern Utah, representing a community tradition, which




encouraged an appreciation for local community, recreation and the beauty of Mount Timpanogos. The formally
organized, annual Mount Timpanogos Hike has a period of significance starting in 1912 when it was first organized
to 1969 when it was discontinued. The Emerald Lake Shelter was built to support this local tradition both for the
annual event as well as everyday hikers. It was used for the last 9 years of the annually organized Mount
Timpanogos Hike, from the summer of 1960 when the building was dedicated to the summer of 1969 the last
formally organized hike. After 1969, locals continued to hike Mount Timpanogos, as before, either individually or
with family and friends, and continued the traditional use of the Emerald Lake Shelter as a place to aspire to reach,
rest at and if needed to take necessary shelter from the elements. Hiking Mount Timpanogos is a local tradition, and
although it started with the annually organized hike, it persists to this day with thousands of locals making the trek
each year.

The integrity of the Emerald Lake Shelter has been mostly retained with respect to the seven aspects defined by the
National Register of Historic Places. The location is retained, it was built just off the side of the Aspen Grove trail
where it was and continues to be easily accessible by Mount Timpanogos hikers. The design as a whole has been
altered due to the removal of the bathroom on the back of the building, however the primary portion of the building
design, with exception of the back wall where the bathroom resided has remained unchanged. The setting has been
retained, as the character of the geographic area is unchanged and the Emerald Lake Shelter still serves the same
function to hikers, providing shelter along their journey. The materials are retained for the primary portion of the
building, this includes the locally available stone for the masonry and the Quonset style roof, but the bathrooms
which were constructed of wood siding were removed. The workmanship is retained with respect to the masonry
work of the building, in addition the mortar, concrete and Quonset style roof remain a testament to the labor
involved in hauling the need materials for its construction. The feeling is retained as the masonry walls and Quonset
style roof are indicative of a post-World War II era Forest Service design. Lastly, the association is retained as the
local populace continues to hike the Aspen Grove trail on Mount Timpanogos and continues to visit, rest and seek
shelter in the Emerald Lake Shelter.

Based on this information it has been determined the Emerald Lake Shelter is eligible to the NRHP under Criterion
A for its association with the Mount Timpanogos Hike, both organized and spontaneous, as the primary use of
Mount Timpanogos is the local populace hiking it and is a character defining feature of this geographic area and of
the Mount Timpanogos Wilderness.
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@ Cultural Resource Record

Unit: Uinta-Wasatch-Cache National Forest
Managing Unit: Pleasant Grove Ranger District
FS Site Number: UWC-831

State Site Number: 42UT1982

State: Utah
County: Utah
Date of this record: Initial Record [J Supplemental Record

I. General Site Information

Resource Type: Building ] TCP
Site Type (all that apply): [J Prehistoric X Historic [J Unknown
Management Use: Recreation

Site Description Narrative: The Emerald Lake Shelter is a building constructed in 1957-1959 for
the Mount Timpanogos Hike, where hikers could rest and take shelter. Constructed of Limestone
mason foundation and walls, a concrete floor, and a corrugated steel roof. Originally the building
had toilets on the back of the building, these were constructed with wood framing and siding, all
of which was removed approximately 20 years ago.

Structure(s) Present: X Yes [ No

Site Dimensions:
Length: 40 feet / Bearing: W-E Width: 33 feet / Bearing: N-S
Meas. Method (Length): GIS Meas. Method (Width): GIS
Site Area: 1,300 Depth of Site: N/A

Site Condition: Fair

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY: Forest Service Cultural Resource information is confidential and cannot be
reproduced physically or digitally without written permission from the Unit’s Forest Service Heritage
Program Manager.



Condition Narrative: Although the bathrooms on the back of the building were removed, the
main building is in relatively fair condition and its uses by hikers continues. There has been
some vandalism with removal of siding on back of building where the toilets were and graffiti on
the building. There main building is in need of some structural/preservation work.

Surface Visibility: 100%

Vandalism Present: X Yes [ No

Vandalism Narrative: Graffiti

Disturbances: Removal of siding on back of building.

Threats: Vandalism and Structural Deterioration

Protection: Public Education and Treatments

Treatments: Structural/Preservation Work

Mgmt. Recommendations: Structural/Historic Preservation Work

Management Narrative: Although structural/historic preservation work is needed, ability to do
this is dependent on Minimum Requirements Decision Guide (MRDG) as the building is located
in the Mount Timpanogos Wilderness.

II. Locational Information

Type of Ownership: Forest Service
USGS Quadrangle: Timpanogos

Legal Description:

PM Township Range Section Quarter Section
Salt Lake 5S B 7

Coordinates:

| Zone/ Datum UTM Zone 12 | Easting 445644 | Northing 4471680

| Longitude: 40° 23.638'N | Latitude: 111° 38.427°W

Elevation: 10410

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY: Forest Service Cultural Resource information is confidential and cannot be
reproduced physically or digitally without written permission from the Unit’s Forest Service Heritage
Program Manager.




Directions to Site: Site can be reached from either the Aspen Grove Trail Head (~5 miles) in the
North Fork of Provo Canyon or from the Timpooneke Trail Head (~6.5 miles) in the South Fork
of American Fork Canyon.

Administrative Address: Pleasant Grove Ranger Station — 390 N 100 E, Pleasant Grove, UT
84062

III. Legal Status Information

National Register Status: [J Listed X Eligible [ Not Eligible [ Unevaluated
District Association: This site [] Contributes Does Not Contribute

To: N/A

Status Organization: Forest Service > Sent for SHPO Concurrence

National Register Status Date: Deemed Eligible by the Forest Service 2/2017
Criteria: Criterion A

National Register Eligibility Status Narrative: Below given Historic Context and National
Register Eligibility Determination

Historic Context — Mount Timpanogos Hike

The Mount Timpanogos hike was first organized in 1912 by Brigham Young University’s
(BYU) Athletic Director Eugene L. Roberts (Salt Lake Telegram 1927:6; Salt Lake Telegram
1936:11; Salt Lake Telegram 1937:16), and in 1913 there were 56 people who made the journey
(Thompson 1997:62; Romaine 1984:159). As the hike continued, formal trails were constructed
and a pre-hike program was conducted at the base of Mt. Timpanogos at the hike’s starting
location in Aspen Grove. This program allowed the community to congregate in the forest prior
to the hike and was aimed at entertaining both hikers and supporters.

In 1921 the Forest Service built the Timpooneke hiking trail (near the Timpooneke Guard
Station) to access the summit from the north (Olson 2006:95). Also during the 1920’s the Forest
Service, along with help from BYU students, built a trail from Aspen Grove to reach the summit
from the east (Richfield Reaper 1925:2). With trails established, the Pleasant Grove Wasatch
Club began campaigns to fund a monument at the summit; this was later abandoned for the idea
of a lookout (Olsen 2006:95). Forest Service Ranger Vivian N. West, also a member of the
Pleasant Grove Wasatch Club, facilitated construction of a lookout along with a viewfinder.
Ranger West contracted the lookouts fabrication to the Builders Steel and Iron Company of Salt
Lake City (Olsen 2006:95). On September 23, 1927 the Salt Lake Telegram reported that “the

glass station, built 12,008 feet above sea level, has been constructed” (Salt Lake Telegram
FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY: Forest Service Cultural Resource information is confidential and cannot be
reproduced physically or digitally without written permission from the Unit’s Forest Service Heritage
Program Manager.



1927:2). Ranger West, four of his Forest Service employees and a team of horses and burros
transported the fabricated material, along with tools, cement, water, etc. up the Timpooneke
hiking trail to the summit where they erected the lookout (Olsen 2006:95).

By the early 1930’s the number of community gatherers at the Aspen Grove program grew to
several thousands and hikers to several hundreds. As such, it was considered to be the largest
known organized hike receiving national attention (Thompson 1997:62; Holmes 1990:165) when
in 1925 the Fox News Service took a motion picture camera on the hike (Richfield Reaper
1925:2). The program was known as the “great bonfire program™ (Richfield Reaper 1925:2) and
the hike was known as “Americas greatest mass hike” (Salt Lake Telegram 1937:16). In order to
facilitate the program early on, an informal stage and seating had been constructed, but by the
1930’s the program was in dire need of an updated facility. On July 30, 1933 the Salt Lake
Tribune reported 8,000 people at the pre-hike program (Salt Lake Tribune 1933:16).

In 1933, Franklin D. Roosevelt’s New Deal Program (1933-1942) was established providing the
man power to construct recreation facilities on Forest Service lands by the Civilian Conservation
Corps (CCC) and the Works Progress Administration (WPA). In 1935, the CCC Woods Cross
Camp (F-48) working under direction from the U.S. Forest Service began construction on the
most grandiose of Utah’s amphitheaters, Theater in the Pines, to serve as a congregation facility
for the annual Mount Timpanogos pre-hike program. The CCC did the stages stone work, and
the following year (1936) WPA Camp No. 553 completed concrete work and built the log seats
(Salt Lake Tribune 1935:16; Salt Lake Telegram 1936:11). On July 8, 1935 the Salt Lake
Tribune reported “the open-air amphitheater is one of the first of its kind to be built in this
region” and “the new theater will provide excellent seats for 2000 in the hillside” (Salt Lake
Tribune 1935:16). The amphitheater was put into use in July 1936 and Eugene L. Roberts,
founder and father of the Mount Timpanogos hike stated “here dreams are coming true” (Salt
Lake Telegram 1936:11).

By 1958 the annual Mount Timpanogos hike recorded 2,200 individuals hiked from Aspen
Grove to the summit (Thompson 1997:62; Kelsey 1989), in addition to the annual hike, the
Aspen Grove and Timpooneke trails were being hiked by thousands of individuals each year. In
an effort to provide protection for both hikers and the environment, the Emerald Lake Shelter
was built to provide an emergency shelter and restrooms (Thompson 1997:61). The shelter’s
construction was heavily supported by the community and was paid for by several sponsoring
groups including Utah County, U.S. Forest Service, Provo City, Provo Chamber of Commerce
and Brigham Young University (The Daily Herald 1960:3; The daily Herald 1959:5).
Construction began in 1957 where “material, including sand, rock and cement hauled up by
packhorse train” and “massive steel structures were toted up-trail on a two-wheels-in-tandem
vehicle” (The Daily Herald 1959:5). In July 1960 the facility was dedicated and put to use
offering “shelter to hikers caught in bad weather or those who might be injured, climbing the
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treacherous Timpanogos glacier” (The Daily Herald 1960:3; The Daily Herald 1959:5). It was
estimated in 1960 that annually about “2000 people reach the summit while another 1000-1500
only reach the lake” (The Daily Herald 1960:3; The Daily Herald 1959:5).

The Emerald Lake Shelter has proved to save lives over the years, an example comes from two
young hikers in 1977 that hiked to Emerald Lake to camp overnight and woke the next morning
to a storm. Hikers C. R. Humphries and H. K. Weber explained to the Deseret News (1977:12)
“the storm hit...there was two to four feet of snow...and the wind was whipping so bad we could
see very little...we decided we were in trouble”, they proceeded to move their equipment into the
shelter where they were snowed in for 4 days. The shelter and its fireplace helped to protect them
from the elements; they collected wood to keep a fire going, heated rocks to put in their sleeping
bags to stay warm, and melted snow for drinking water. The shelter continues to provide hikers
protection from the elements and is used consistently by the Timpanogos Emergency Response
Team (TERT) in order to provide hikers with necessary first aid and in some cases to stabilize
seriously injured patients for evacuation.

In 1964 the Wilderness Act was passed, 20 years later the Utah Wilderness Act was passed and
the Mount Timpanogos Wilderness was established in 1984. When defining wilderness, the
Wilderness Act of 1964 states under Section 2(c)(4), “may contain ecological, geological, or
other features of scientific, educational, scenic, or historical value.” The Emerald Lake Shelter
and Glass House hold historical value, as they were constructed as landmarks for those making
their annual Timpanogos Hike, the first provides a resting place and protection from the elements
before hikers make the final ascent to the summit and the second serves as an overlook of the
wilderness-urban interface of the Wasatch Front and Back. Many hikers in the Mount
Timpanogos wilderness are there to experience the Wilderness with a goal in mind to reach one
or both of these buildings. Originally both buildings served as milestones, drawing people into
the Wilderness, but now these shelters have additional nostalgic meaning for hikers, as many
have hiked the trail all their lives with their family and friends, resting at these buildings and
often times taking photos of themselves with them.

The 1969 Timpanogos Hike put approximately 8,000 individuals on the mountain with
approximately 3,500 reaching the summit (Thompson 1997:61). As a result, the Forest Service
asked BYU to discontinue the group hike from Aspen Grove in an effort to reduce the
environmental impacts. Once the Mount Timpanogos Wilderness was established in 1984 this
continued the effort to preserve environmental quality, however inadvertently it made
maintenance and preservation of the two historic buildings in the wilderness a dubious topic.
Even with discontinuing the organized hike, several thousand individuals continued to hike
Timpanogos each year and began writing their names, dates, etc. to document their hike on the
deteriorating buildings. These buildings not only served as destination beacons but also as a
visitor log of sorts. Efforts have been made to stop the graffiti through removal at the Emerald
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Lake Shelter and repainting the galvanized steel of the glass house, however these efforts have
been unsuccessful in stopping this practice. The establishment of the Timpanogos Emergency
Response Team (TERT) in 1983 provides a presence at the Emerald Lake Shelter which helps to
abate graffiti when they are using the facility.

When the Mount Timpanogos Wilderness was established in 1984 the Glass House was already a
historic building, as it was 56 years in age, and eligible for nomination to the National Register
of Historic Places (NHPA) under Criterion A for its association with the annual Timpanogos
Hike which was a significant local historical event. At the time the Wilderness was established
the Emerald Lake Shelter was only 24, but now is 57 years in age, and is therefore being
assessed here for its eligibility to the NRHP.

National Register of Historic Places Eligibility Determination — Emerald Lake Shelter

The Historic Context provided here details the significant theme the Mount Timpanogos Hike
holds with respect to social history as the Area of Significance used by the National Register of
Historic Places. The Mount Timpanogos Hike is a significant local event to the community of
northern Utah, representing a community tradition, which encouraged an appreciation for local
community, recreation and the beauty of Mount Timpanogos. The formally organized, annual
Mount Timpanogos Hike has a period of significance starting in 1912 when it was first organized
to 1969 when it was discontinued. The Emerald Lake Shelter was built to support this local
tradition both for the annual event as well as everyday hikers. It was used for the last 9 years of
the annually organized Mount Timpanogos Hike, from the summer of 1960 when the building
was dedicated to the summer of 1969 the last formally organized hike. After 1969, locals
continued to hike Mount Timpanogos, as before, either individually or with family and friends,
and continued the traditional use of the Emerald Lake Shelter as a place to aspire to reach, rest at
and if needed to take necessary shelter from the elements. Hiking Mount Timpanogos is a local
tradition, and although it started with the annually organized hike, it persists to this day with
thousands of locals making the trek each year.

The integrity of the Emerald Lake Shelter has been mostly retained with respect to the seven
aspects defined by the National Register of Historic Places. The location is retained, it was built
just off the side of the Aspen Grove trail where it was and continues to be easily accessible by
Mount Timpanogos hikers. The design as a whole has been altered due to the removal of the
bathroom on the back of the building, however the primary portion of the building design, with
exception of the back wall where the bathroom resided has remained unchanged. The setting has
been retained, as the character of the geographic area is unchanged and the Emerald Lake Shelter
still serves the same function to hikers, providing shelter along their journey. The materials are
retained for the primary portion of the building, this includes the locally available stone for the
masonry and the Quonset style roof, but the bathrooms which were constructed of wood siding
were removed. The workmanship is retained with respect to the masonry work of the building, in

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY: Forest Service Cultural Resource information is confidential and cannot be
reproduced physically or digitally without written permission from the Unit’s Forest Service Heritage
Program Manager.



addition the mortar, concrete and Quonset style roof remain a testament to the labor involved in
hauling the need materials for its construction. The feeling is retained as the masonry walls and
Quonset style roof are indicative of a post-World War II era Forest Service design. Lastly, the
association is retained as the local populace continues to hike the Aspen Grove trail on Mount
Timpanogos and continues to visit, rest and seek shelter in the Emerald Lake Shelter.

Based on this information it has been determined the Emerald Lake Shelter is eligible to the
NRHP under Criterion A for its association with the Mount Timpanogos Hike, both organized
and spontaneous, as the primary use of Mount Timpanogos is the local populace hiking it and is
a character defining feature of this geographic area and of the Mount Timpanogos Wilderness.

Significance Period: 1960-1969
Theme: Social History
Other Designations: None

V. Component Information

Site Component Type: [] Prehistoric Historic [J Unknown
Component Function/Activity: Shelter
Cultural Affiliation: Northern Utah Community

Cultural Affiliation Narrative: The Mount Timpanogos Hike is a local tradition that this building
was constructed in support of. The local community of Utah County and broader surrounding
community of Northern Utah have a tradition of summiting Mount Timpanogos and visiting the
Emerald Lake Shelter along the way.

Period: 1960 - Present Date Range: 1960 - Present
Dating Method: Historical Record
Feature Summary Narrative: Building - Shelter

Feature Description: The Emerald Lake Shelter is a building constructed in 1957-1959 for the
Mount Timpanogos Hike, where hikers could rest and take shelter. Constructed of Limestone
mason foundation and walls, a concrete floor, and a corrugated steel roof. Originally the building
had toilets on the back of the building, these were constructed with wood framing and siding, all
of which was removed approximately 20 years ago.

Artifact Summary Narrative: None

Artifact Description: N/A
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Rock Art/ Art Panel Description: N/A

V. Other Features On Site

None

V1. Environmental Information

On-Site Vegetation Narrative: Above timberline and is mostly various forbes and grasses.
Natural Community: Alpine Tundra

Physiographic Region: Hudsonian to Alpine

Landform Feature: Basin

Slope: 5% Aspect: 90°

Site Position Narrative: Building sits in high elevation basin near Emerald Lake on Mount
Timpanogos.

Major Drainage: North Fork Provo

Basin: Great Basin Sub-basin: Timpanogos
Nearest Water Name: Emerald Lake

Distance: 250 feet

Geology/Geomorphology: Limestone

Soil: Rocky soils deposited through colluvium processes.

Soil Depth: Shallow

VIL Site Associations

Current action resulting in the documentation of this site: Assessment of sites historic context
and eligibility to the National Register of Historic Places

Project/Undertaking Name: None
People and organizations associated with this site: USDA Forest Service
Contact Name: Rachelle Handley Relationship: Archaeologist

Documentation linked in INFRA: X Yes X No
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1|Emerald Lake Shelter — Historical Overview and NRHP
Eval‘u‘a_tion-Project # _UWC—17—1663 / Site # UWC—831/42UT71”9782>_

42UT1982: 2 Facing: W
Front, east facing.



2|Emerald Lake Shelter — Historical Overview and NRHP
Evaluation-Project # UWC-17-1663 / Site # UWC-831/42UT1982

42UT1982:3 Facing: SW
Front and north facing side.

North facing side.



3|Emerald Lake Shelter — Historical Overview and NRHP
Evaluation-Project # UWC-17-1663 / Site # UWC-831/42UT1982

Back and northwest facing side.

42UT1982:6 ' Facing: E



4|Emerald Lake Shelter — Historical Overview and NRHP
Evaluation-Project # UWC-17-1663 / Site # UWC-831/42UT1982

Back, west facing side.

42UT1982:7 Facing: NE
Back and south facing side.

42UT1982:8 ' | Facing: N
South facing side.



5|Emerald Lake Shelter — Historical Overview and NRHP
Evaluation-Project # UWC-17-1663 / Site # UWC-831/42UT1982

By
e

42UT1982:9 Facing: NW
Front, and south facing side.

42UT1982:10 Facing: W
Fireplace.



6|Emerald Lake Shelter — Historical Overview and NRHP
Evaluation-Project # UWC-17-1663 / Site # UWC-831/42UT1982
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42UT1982:11 Facing: NW
Sitting ledge.

42UT1982:12
Floor.



7|Emerald Lake Shelter — Historical OQverview and NRHP
Evaluation-Project # UWC-17-1663 / Site # UWC_—831/42UT1982

42UT1982:14
Close up of pit vault.




8|Emerald Lake Shelter — Historical Overview and NRHP
Eval‘uation~Projec‘tr#_ 'L‘JV_kVV\(C—v17-1663 /,S‘te,,_# ,,U,WC;,‘,SS1/42U‘T1982w
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42UT1982:15 ' Facing: PLAN VIEW
Close up of man hole.

42TU1982:16 Facing: NW
Steps on front of building.
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Emerald Lake Shelter Location Map
Forest Project # UWC-17-1663

Site # UWC-831 / State Site # 42UT1982 [i*

3

Location Map

Project: Emerald Lake Shelter Historical Overview and 1:24.000
Legend National Register of Historic Places Evaluation .
Forest Project # UWC-17-1663 Kilometers
- Building Location Forest Site # UWC-831 / State Site # 42UT1982 0 0275 055 1.1
Legal Location: SE 1/4 NE 1/4 SE 1/4 SE 1/4 T5S R3E N ESEESS——— |l
0 0.25 05 1

USGS Quad Map: Timpanogos Cave, UT 7.5' 1975
Surveyor(s): Rachelle Handley
Survey Date: 9/8/2015




Emerald Lake Shelter Location Map
Forest Project # UWC-17-1663
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Project: Emerald Lake Shelter Historical Overview and 1-500
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USGS Quad Map: Timpanogos Cave, UT 7.5' 1975
Surveyor(s): Rachelle Handley
Survey Date: 9/8/2015




5/31/2017 State of Utah Mail - VAF tour volunteers

Christopher Hansen <clhansen@utah.gov>

VAF tour volunteers
1 message

Roger Roper <rroper@utah.gov> Wed, May 31, 2017 at 2:26 PM
To: Amy Barry <amybarry@utah.gov>, Deb Miller <damiller@utah.gov>, Don Hartley <dhartley@utah.gov>, Christopher
Hansen <clhansen@utah.gov>, Nelson Knight <nwknight@utah.gov>, Lisa Buckmiller <lbuckmiller@utah.gov>, Alycia
Aldrich <aaldrich@utah.gov>, Kevin Fayles <kfayles@utah.gov>

Cc: Cory Jensen <coryjensen@utah.gov>

Thanks everyone for your willingness to help out with our tour on Friday morning. | have a packet of materials I'm
preparing for each of you including:

e Basic information about the general flow of the tour buildings

* A spreadsheet of the tour-site assignments, showing who will be co-hosting with you at your site. This also
includes phone numbers for Cory and me, in case you need to get in touch with us.

* A copy of the entire tour booklet--sorry, not one of the official booklets (they didn't print enough for all the
volunteers), but a nice-looking version nevertheless. You'll probably want to read the one-page write-up on your
building so you at least know some of the basics, though you're not expected to be a formal tour guide with all the
answers.

* A VAF pin for you to wear that morning to identify yourself as a VAF guide.

| think I've spoken with all of you about your assignments, so you should know where to go that morning. If not, please
give me a call. By the way, my cell phone number is 801-505-8136, which is probably the best way to reach me after
today (email and text are OK too). | will be in Sanpete County on Thursday, but you can still get in touch with me as
needed.

We'd like everyone at their assigned building by 8:30 (preferably a little earlier) to get a little orientation and a quick walk-
through. You won't have to be an expert on the building, mostly just provide some guidance and direction.

In terms of parking, there should be street parking within a block or so of your building. Those at or near the Masonic
Temple will probably want to park in the large, free parking lot behind the building. That also serves as a shuttle stop.
The other two formal shuttle stops are at the Wall Mansion/Monson Center and at the corner of J Street and 2nd Avenue
(see pages 4 and 5 in the tour booklet).

Thanks again for helping out with this. It should be nice weather on Friday, so we're looking forward to a great tour.

Roger Roper

Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer
Utah Division of State History

Department of Heritage and Arts

300 S. Rio Grande, Salt Lake City, UT, 84101
rroper@utah.gov

801.245.7251

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2b5e1cdf33&view=pt&search=inbox&th=15c60307679e5fef&sim|=15c60307679e5fef
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USD A United States Forest Uinta-Wasatch-Cache National Forest 390 North 100 East
=== Department of Service Pleasant Grove Ranger District Pleasant Grove, UT 84062
ol Aoricuiture 801-785-3563

Fax: 801-785-6932

File Code: 2360
Date:  May 15, 2017

Chris Hansen

Deputy Historic Preservation Officer
300 South Rio Grande Street

Salt Lake City, Utah 84101

Dear Mr. Hansen,

Please find the enclosed report for Emerald Lake Shelter — Historic Overview and National
Register of Historic Places Evaluation, listed under Forest Service Heritage Report # UWC-17-
1663 and Forest Service Site # UWC-831 / State # 42UT1982. This facility is located on the
Pleasant Grove Ranger District of the Uinta-Wasatch-Cache National Forest (UWCNF). This
report is being submitted to the Utah State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) seeking formal
concurrence concerning the Emerald Lake Shelter’s eligibility to the National Register of
Historic Places.

The UWCNTF appreciates your review of this assessment, if you have any questions or concerns
in regard to this project please contact Rachelle Handley, Archaeologist with the UWCNF
Heritage Program, at 801-999-2163 or rghandley@fs.fed.us.

Received
MAY 2 o 26/
USHPO

& G
Caring for the Land and Serving People Printed on Recycled Paper W
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Tools needed:
wheel barrel, for mixing concret
5 gal. buckets, for mixing mortar
water, for grouting, concrete mi
electricity for tools
shovel
hoe, for mixing concrete
concrete finishing trowel
grout bag
joint finishing tool
power saw & jig saw
drill
hammer
measuring tape
prybar, for stripping forms
steel brush, for surface prep on
pencil
level, 4ft
way to remove debris/scraps
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